AGREEMENT BETWEEN TOWN OF MARSHFIELD

AND.

VENTRESS LIBRARY PROFESSIONAL STAFF ASSOCIATION

July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017

OHUN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I	Stability of Agreement	3
ARTICLE II	Recognition	4
ARTICLE III	Employment Security	4
ARTICLE IV	Management Rights	6
ARTICLEV	Grievance and Arbitration Procedure	6
ARTICLE VI	Hours of Work	8
ARTICLE VII	Overtime	8
ARTICLE VIII	Holidays	9
ARTICLE IX	Leaves of Absence	. 9
ARTICLE X	Vacations	10
ARTICLE XI	Sick Leave	12
ARTICLE XII	Longevity Pay	14
ARTICLE XIII	Educational Reimbursement	14
ARTICLE XIV	Compensation Plan	14
ARTICLE XV	Work Stoppages	15
ARTICLE XVI	Miscellaneous Provisions	15
ARTICLE XVII	Antidiscrimination	. 17
ARTICLE XVIII	Duration of Agreement	17

Appendix A-Salary Schedule
Appendix B-Drug and Alcohol Testing Program

P CMW

2

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

TOWN OF MARSHFIELD AND

VENTRESS LIBRARY PROFESSIONAL STAFF

July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2013

This Agreement entered into by the Town of Marshfield, hereinafter referred to as the "TOWN" and Ventress Library Professional Staff, hereinafter referred to as the "ASSOCIATION", has as its purpose the promotion of harmonious relations between the TOWN and the ASSOCIATION; the establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences; and the establishment of rates of pay, hours of work and standards of productivity and performance and other conditions of employment.

ARTICLE I-STABILITY OF AGREEMENT

- 1.0 If any of the provisions of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be in conflict with any Federal law or statute, or statutes of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, such provision shall be considered null and void and shall not be binding on the parties hereto; and in such event, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. The provision of Section 7, of Chapter 150E shall not be waived by the preceding paragraph.
- 1.1 The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which preceded the execution of this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Either party may, however, propose specific amendments to this Agreement and the parties may mutually agree on amendments and proposals and the effective date thereof; but neither party shall be obligated to consider or negotiate such proposed demands or amendments. Additions to this Agreement shall be evidenced by letters of mutual intent which shall be signed by representatives of the parties duly authorized by the Town and the Union.
- 1.2 The failure of the Town or the Association to insist in any one or more incidents, upon performance of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall not be considered as a waiver or relinquishment of the rights of the Town or of the Association to future performance of any such terms or conditions, and the obligations of the Association or of the Town to such future performance shall continue in full force and effect.

Comm

3

ARTICLE 11-RECOGNITION

2.0 The Town recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purposes of establishing salaries, wages, hours of work, standards of productivity and performance and other conditions of employment for all professional library employees of the Town of Marshfield certified under M.C.R. 2907, and any additions, changes, or deletions mutually agreed to by the parties; and excluding all other employees of the Town.

A list of classifications of employees as shown in Appendix A constitutes the present bargaining unit of employees.

ARTICLE III-EMPLOYMENT SECURITY

- 3.0 There shall be no discrimination by representatives of the Town against any employee because of such employee's activity or membership in the Association. The Association agrees not to unlawfully intimidate or coerce any employee into membership into the Association nor discriminate in any way against non-Association members of the Town of Marshfield.
- 3.1 When a vacancy in a position covered by this Agreement occurs and the Board of Trustees determine to fill the same ... such a vacancy shall be posted in a conspicuous place listing the pay, duties and qualifications. This notice of vacancy shall remain posted for seven (7) days. Employees interested shall apply in writing within the seven (7) day period. The Town shall not be required to fill a vacancy if the Board of Trustees do not provide funding for the position or if in their discretion no applicant is qualified.
- 3.2 It is the policy of the Town to fill positions in the unit by the upgrading or promotion of persons presently employed. The first consideration of employees for upgrading or promotion shall be made within the employee's department. Upgrading and promotions, if made, shall be based upon ability and qualifications, and seniority.
- 3.3 An employee newly hired into a classification in the bargaining unit after the effective date of this Agreement shall serve a probationary period of six (6) calendar months duration to determine fitness for service. During and employee's probationary period, he may be terminated without benefit or recourse to any provisions of this Agreement. After having successfully completed the probationary period, no employee shall be disciplined, suspended, discharged, or lowered in rank or compensation purposes except for just cause.
- 3.4 Employees shall have the right to have an Association representative or steward present in a grievance meeting on any disciplinary action including warning or reprimand. An employee's personnel file shall be available to the employee. No reprimand shall be placed in an employee's file unless first shown to the employee. Reprimands will be subject to the grievance procedure through the Selectmen's level but are not subject to the arbitration process.

to ome of

- 3.5 The Association shall furnish the Town a written list of Association Stewards immediately after the designation of such representatives. The Association shall notify the Town of any changes.
- 3.6 Except as the need of the department requires, the Association Steward shall be granted reasonable amount of time off with pay during working hours to investigate and settle grievances. The Association Steward must request such time off from his/her Department Head, which time off shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- 3.7 The Town will not unlawfully aid, promote or finance any labor organization or unlawfully make any Agreement with any such group or individual contrary to the terms contained in this Agreement.
- 3.8 In the event that reduction in force is necessary, the determination of whether and when it becomes necessary to layoff any employees shall be determined solely by the Town. The number of persons to be laid off within those classifications and functions will be determined solely by the Town. Within the classifications that the Town determines shall have layoffs, the Town will layoff employees subject to seniority, classification and qualifications according to the policy and procedures described in the Article. The Library Director shall give the Union at leave two weeks notice of the Library Director's intent to layoff or recall to work and shall meet to bargain over the impact of the layoff or recall. The Union may request a meeting at any time with the Library Director and Town Administrator if layoffs or reductions in force are being considered.

In the event of a layoff or reduction in force, consideration shall be given to bargaining unit members over casual employees not belonging to any other bargaining unit. This shall not be construed as limiting the right of the Town to manage staffing in a manner that is in the best interests of the Town and the Ventress Memorial Library.

The town agrees to provide to an employee who is to be laid off fourteen days written notice of the date his/her layoff is to be implemented. The town agrees to create an eighteen month recall list for permanent employees who are laid off. Any employee who is laid off will be placed on the list by classification in the order of his /her seniority.

NE E The employee's name shall be on the list for eighteen months from the date he/she officially leaves the payroll. If an employee who has been laid off because of a reduction in force is rehired within eighteen months, the employee will retain his/her seniority based on his/her original date of hire, excluding the period of the layoff.

If, after the layoff, the Town fills any position at the library within the classification for which a recall list exists, the Town agrees that before it hires a new employee for a permanent position, it will offer to recall an employee on the list, subject to seniority, qualifications and special requirements for the position.

After eighteen months on the recall list, or after refusing a recall in the same classification, a laid off employee's name will be automatically removed from the list.

The determination of the necessity of layoffs, the selection of the classifications and the number of employees within those classifications to be laid off and the filling of vacancies are essential elements of Town management and as such are nongrievable and are not subject to arbitration. While the town recognizes its obligations to provide the Union with notice and an opportunity to bargain over the reassignment of employees, the determination of such a reassignment is an essential element of Town management and as such is a nongrievable and is not subject to arbitration. However, the procedural requirements for laying off and recalling employees are grievable and subject to arbitration.

ARTICLE IV-MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

4.0 Except as expressly limited by a specific provision of this Agreement, the Association recognizes and agrees that the Town shall continue to have the exclusive right to take any action it deems appropriate in the management of the various Town Departments and agencies and the direction of the work force in accordance with its judgment. All inherent management functions and prerogatives which the Town has not expressly modified or restricted by a specific provision of this Agreement are retained and vested exclusively in the Town. Without limiting the generalities of the foregoing, the Town shall have the right of making work assignments, disciplining for just cause, maintaining discipline, and right to make and enforce reasonable rules not in conflict with the Agreement for the safe, efficient, and orderly operation of the various departments and agencies of the Town.

ARTICLE V-GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

5.0 . Any difference as to the interpretation of this Agreement in its application to a particular situation or as to whether it has been observed and performed and the disposition of which is not provided for in any law may be a grievance under this Agreement.

· `

- 5.I Any employee may use this grievance procedure with or without Association assistance but no grievance settlement made as a result of an individual processed grievance shall contravene any provision of this Agreement. The Association shall have the right to be present at any grievance meeting between parties.
- 5.2 Grievances shall be processed as follows:
- Step I. The employee, with or without the Steward, shall present the grievance in writing to the employee's Department Head, within five (5) working days of the date of the grievance or the employee's first knowledge of its occurrence. A grievance may only be filed by the aggrieved party or the Association. The Department Head shall attempt to adjust the matter and shall respond to the employee within five (5) working days.
- Step 2. If the grievance has not been settled in Step I, it shall be presented to the Town Administrator in writing within three (3) working days after the Department Head's response is due. The Town Administrator shall respond to the employee or to the Steward in writing within seven (7) working days of his receipt of the grievance from the employee or the Steward.
- Step 3. If the grievance still remains unadjusted at the Step 2 level, it shall be presented to the Board of Selectmen in writing within five (5) working days after the response of the Town Administrator is due. The Selectmen shall respond in writing within fifteen (15) working days after receipt by them of the grievance from the employee or Steward.
- 5.3 If the grievance is still unsettled, either party may, within fifteen (15) calendar days after the reply of the Selectmen is due, by written notice to the other, request arbitration.
- 5.4 A grievance not initiated or processed within the time limits specified above shall be deemed null and void. The above time limits may be waived by mutual Agreement of the parties.
- 5.5 The arbitrator shall be selected by mutual agreement of the parties hereto. If the parties fail to agree on a selection in the first instance, the American Arbitration Association will be requested to provide a list of arbitrators from which a selection shall be made in accordance with the applicable rules of the American Arbitration Association
- 5.6 The arbitrator shall have the authority to settle only disputes defined herein. Any grievance appealed to an arbitrator over which he shall have no power to rule shall be referred back to the parties without a decision. The arbitrator shall have no power to I) add to, subtract from, or modify the terms of this Agreement; 2) recommend a right or relief or to order a retroactive remedy effective prior to the effective date of this Agreement; or 3) modify or abridge in any way the statutory rights and prerogatives of the Town. Neither shall the arbitrator take any action to prevent the Town and the Association from settling by mutual agreement prior to final decision, any grievance submitted to arbitration hereunder. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties. Expenses for the arbitrator's service shall be shared equally by the parties.

5.7 Reprimands shall be subject to the grievance procedure through the Selectmen's level,

CMW ()

but are not subject to the arbitration process.

ARTICLE VI-HOURS OF WORK

- 6.0 This Article is intended to provide the basis for the calculation of overtime pay and shall not be construed as limiting or determining the nature of any shift arrangements or the day or hour on which any particular employee shall begin or end work
- 6.I The work week shall be thirty-seven and one-half (37 1/2) hours. The work week shall normally consist of five (5), seven and one-half (7 1/2,) hour days.
- 6.2 The Town may, apart from the above, establish from time to time different work schedules and hours of work for individual employees after consultation with the Association and after having given due consideration to the convenience of the employee involved.
- 6.3 Employees shall be allowed a fifteen (15) minute rest break in each one-half (1/2) shift. Employees may be allowed to leave the work location during their rest break
- 6.4 Employees required to work on Sundays, shall receive one and one-half times their normal rate of pay for those Sunday hours. Employees shall be given a minimum of two weeks notification for required Sunday work hours. Employees will be able to exchange their work hours with another employee, if required to work on a Sunday. Employees who wish to have Sunday work hours as part of their normal work week, at the regular rate of pay, may petition the Library Director and the Library Director has the option of such approval, to work Sunday as a fifth day and be paid for 7.5 hours for that Sunday work day. Employees are expected to give as much notice as possible if he/she becomes ill and aid the Library Director in getting coverage for his/her Sunday Hours.
- 6.5 Effective July I, 2014, employees that are required to work on Saturdays, or are required to work after 5:30p.m. Monday through Friday, shall be paid an additional \$.75 per hour for those hours.

ARTICLE VII- OVERTIME

- 7.0 Overtime pay at the rate of one and one-half (I Y,) times the employees regular straight time hourly rate shall be paid for work performed in excess of thirty seven and one-half (37 1/2,) hours in the workweek.
- 7.I Employees who are called back from their homes to perform unscheduled work, after having completed their assigned work and left their place of employment shall be guaranteed a minimum of two (2) hours work or two (2) hours pay. Payment shall be in accordance with the provisions of this Article, Section 7.0, provided call back hours are in excess of all hours worked in the work week. Employees shall not be required to change work schedule to offset overtime hours worked.

Some

۶

ARTICLE VIII-HOLIDAYS

8.0 Employees covered by the Agreement shall be granted the following twelve paid holidays each year of actively employed on the occurrence of each holiday:

New Year's Day Martin Luther King Day President's Day Memorial Day Independence Day Labor Day

Columbus Day
Patriot's Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

One half-day the day before Christmas. If Christmas falls on Tuesday through Sunday the holiday will begin at 1:00 p.m. and there will be no lunch period or afternoon break.

- 8.1 Sunday holidays shall be celebrated on the following Monday. Saturday holidays shall be celebrated on the preceding Friday.
- 8.2 Any employee required to work on any of the above listed holidays shall receive their hourly rate for all hours worked on the holiday, in addition to holiday pay.
- 8.3 An employee shall not be eligible for holiday pay unless the employee has worked the last regularly scheduled working day prior to the next regularly scheduled working day following such holiday unless the absence is excused by the Department Head or the employee is on full status.
- 8.4 Every employee in full-time or continuous part-time employment shall be entitled to these designated holidays on the following terms:
 - 1. All full-time employees will receive a full day's pay for each holiday, not to exceed the pay for a 37 1/2 hour work week. The only exception is outlined in 8.2 above.
 - 2. All part-time employees will receive pay for five (5) hours of holiday pay on the week the holiday occurs. Holiday pay will be granted even if the holiday falls on the employee's normal day off. If the employee is scheduled to work greater than five (5) hours on a day the holiday falls, the employee will have the option of working the additional hours another time during the week to keep their paycheck consistent with their normal workweek

ARTICLE IX-LEAVE OF ABSENCE

9.0 Emergency leave, not to exceed three (3) days per calendar year, may be granted by the Department Head when circumstances warrant such leave and the circumstances are of a nature that the employee could not utilize her/his scheduled days off In no event will such leave be considered an extension of vacation. When time requirements permit, request for emergency leave must be submitted to the Department Head in writing explaining the circumstances of the

NZ

Some Some

9

request.

It is understood that employees will make every effort to attend to their personal business on non-working hours. Examples of legitimate reasons for emergency leave are:

- 1. Court obligations
- 2. Serious family illness
- 3. Adoption of children
- 4. Medical or dental appointments
- 5. Equivalent personal business affairs which cannot reasonably be scheduled
- 9.1 Employees may have up to three (3) consecutive working days off without loss of pay in the event of a death in the employee's immediate family which shall only include spouse, mother, father, child, brother, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparents and grandchildren. Additional time off without pay may be granted by the Department Head for justifiable reasons or necessary travel.
- 9.2 Leave to attend summer encampment for military duty shall be without loss of pay in accordance with Generals Laws, Chapter 33, Section 9. The Town will reimburse the employee the difference in adjusted gross wages earned while on summer encampment and the employee's regular weekly salary. Adjusted gross wages are gross wages less board, lodging and travel expenses.
- 9.3 The Town will reimburse the employee the difference in wages earned as a juror and the employee's regular weekly salary. During the employee's jury duty period, if the employee is excused, he is expected to work any period of his regular daily shift when not on jury duty.
- 9.4 Leave of absence without pay up to a period of three (3) months and up to four (4) months, with three (3) weeks notice when possible, for temporary disability may be granted by the appropriate Department Head and the Town Administrator. Leave of absence of over three (3) months duration shall be considered a break in employment and on return to work the employee shall have the status of a new employee, unless an extension of leave beyond three (3) months has been authorized in advance by the Town Administrator.
- 9.5 Leave shall be reduced or not allowed if the period of days necessary for leave occurs while the employee is not scheduled for work, on vacation, on sick leave or other leave of absence.

ARTICLE X- VACATIONS

- I 0.0 All employees shall be allowed vacation without loss of their regular weekly rate of pay in accordance with the following schedule:
 - A. Employees hired between July 1 and December 31 and in the employ of the town the following July 1 shall be granted two calendar weeks vacation. Employees hired between January 1 and June 30 shall receive one (1) day of vacation for each full month of continuous service but not to exceed one (1) calendar week of paid vacation.



Cmw RB

- Every employee, as defined above, shall be granted a vacation of two (2) calendar weeks in each year if he has actually worked for the Town for thirty (30) weeks of continuous service during the twelve (12) months preceding the first day of July.
- C. An employee who completes five (5) years of service shall be granted an additional week's vacation allowance. An employee who completes ten (10) years of service shall be granted an additional week's allowance. On an employee's fifth and tenth anniversary he/she will be entitled to a third or fourth week (whichever is applicable) of vacation, but only if said anniversary is between July I and December 31: otherwise, not until the following July I will the employee be entitled to third or fourth week. An employee with twenty (20) years continuous service will receive a fifth week of vacation in accordance with Article 10.
- D. Employees may bank up to two (2) weeks of their vacation and use it the following year.
- Upon the death of an employee who is eligible for vacation under these rules, payment shall be made to the estate of the deceased in an amount equal to the vacation allowance as accrued in the vacation year prior to the employee's death but which had not been granted. In addition, payment shall be made for that portion of the vacation allowance earned in the vacation year during which the employee died, up to the time of his separation from the payroll.
- Employees who are eligible for vacation under these rules and whose services are terminated by dismissal through no fault or delinquency of their own, by resignation (if two weeks' notice has been given previously) or by retirement, or by entrance into the Armed Forces, shall be paid an amount equal to the vacation allowance as earned, and not granted, in the vacation year prior to such dismissal, resignation with notice, retirement or entrance into the Armed Forces. In addition, payment shall be made for that portion of vacation allowance earned in the vacation year during which such dismissal, resignation with notice, retirement, or entrance into the Armed Forces occurred up to the time of the employee's separation from the payroll; said allowance to be one day for each full month of continuous service completed subsequent to July l".
- Absences on account of sickness in excess of that authorized under the rules therefore or for personal reasons as provided for elsewhere may, at the discretion of the Department Head and the Town Administrator, be charged to vacation leave.
- !fa holiday credit falls within the vacation period, it shall not be charged as part of the vacation allowance. An additional day off shall be allowed for such holiday.
- 10.5 Vacation shall be scheduled at the discretion of the head of the respective department of the Town at such time as will cause the least interference with the performance of the regular work of the Town. In scheduling vacations, preference should be given employees on the basis of years of employment with the town as provided in Article III, Section 4.
- 10.6 July Ist of any year shall be the vacation anniversary date for computing vacation credit.

Cmw KB

ARTICLE XI-SICK LEAVE

- 11.0 An employee in continuous employment who has completed thirty (30) weeks of service following original employment shall be allowed fifteen (15) days leave with pay each year or one and one-quarter (1 1/4) days for each month in any year when his employment is less than thirty (30) weeks, provided such leave is caused by sickness, injury or exposure to contagious disease. An employee may use up to a maximum of 5 days of their annual sick leave when a member of the immediate family requires the personal attendance of the employee. Immediate family includes spouse, children, parents. Use of sick time for this purpose must be approved by the Department Head and will be calculated as a use of sick days. Sick leave shall accumulate to a maximum of one hundred and fifty (150) days of sick leave eligibility. Effective July 1, 2010, all employees shall accrue twelve (12) days of paid sick leave per year.
- 11.1 An employee may loan a portion of his/her accumulated sick leave days to another employee who is on a prolonged illness (thirty days or more), who has exhausted his own accumulated and borrowed sick leave days, who is in financial need and who is not receiving other compensation from a governmental agent or private employment. An employee shall not be allowed to make the loan if his accumulated sick leave days are fifteen (15) days or less or if the number of days to be loaned will diminish his own accumulated sick leave below a total of fifteen (15) days. Any employee that has given notice of termination or retirement shall not be eligible to donate sick days. An employee shall not be allowed to loan any accrued sick leave days beyond his accumulated one hundred and fifty (150) days. Each employee will be allowed to donate one day each for the injury or illness. Any subsequent donations must be approved in writing by the Town Administrator. Once the employee has returned to work, any unused days shall be recredited to the employees that made the donation.
- 11.2 Sick leave is authorized by the Department Head subject to review by the Town Administrator. If an employee is absent three (3) days or more, chargeable to sick leave, a statement from the employee's physician may be required, such statement to give the nature of the illness and the expected duration. Such certificates may be required at the discretion of the Department Head. In order for sick leave to be allowed, an employee must notify the Town on the first day of the absence. Sick leave notification may be reported by the employee, his family or physician.
- 11.3 The Town may require a medical examination of any employee on sick leave. This examination shall be at the expense of the Town and by a physician appointed by the Town unless otherwise wavered by the Town.
- 11.4 Pursuant to General Laws, Chapter 152, Section 69, employees may utilize sick leave accumulated prior to injury to make up the difference between regular wages and the amount received from Workmen's Compensation until such sick leave is exhausted.
- 11.5 Employees in the Town's employ as of December 31, 1982, shall be compensated for unused sick leave when permanently separated from employment as a result of retirement under the terms of the Massachusetts Retirement Plan, or death (in which case payment shall be made to the employee's estate) subject to the following conditions:
 - a. In no event shall total accumulation of unused sick leave exceed 150 days.



conw

- b. 100% of the unused sick leave days accumulated prior to July 1, 1986, up to !50 days, and not thereafter used, shall be compensated at the rate of 100% of the employee's base rate of pay on the date of retirement or death.
- c. 50% of the unused sick leave days accumulated after June 30, 1986, and not thereafter used, shall be compensated at the rate of 100% of the employee's base rate of pay on the date of retirement or death.
- d. When sick leave is taken by an employee, days taken shall be charged to the employee's accumulation on a last in-first out basis. After June 30, 1986, days accumulated prior thereto and unused for sick leave may be re-accumulated up to that total accumulated as of June 30, 1986, on a 100% basis. Total days to be considered for sick leave buy back shall not exceed 150 days regardless of whether compensation is under Provision b, c, or a combination of both.
- e. An employee who does not use any sick time within a six month period (July December and January-June) will receive one incentive day per period for a total not to exceed two per year. The incentive day shall be used in the next six month period. This time off will be subject to the needs of the Department and must have prior approval of the Library Director.
- 11.6 Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement, any employee hired by the Town after December 31, 1982, shall not be compensated for unused sick leave when permanently separated from employment for any reason.
- 11.7 In accordance with Chapter 149, Section 105D of the General Laws, a female employee who has been employed by the employer for at least three consecutive months as a full-time employee, who is absent from such employment for a period not exceeding eight (8) weeks for the purpose of giving birth, said period to be hereinafter called maternity leave, and who shall give at least two weeks notice to her employer of her anticipated date of departure and intention to return, shall be restored to her previous or similar position, with the same status, pay, length of service credit and seniority, as of the date of her leave. Said maternity leave may be with or without pay at the discretion of the employer. Additional unpaid leave may be granted, upon approval of the Town Administrator, if, in the opinion of the Town Administrator, such leave would not affect the nature and level of departmental services.
- 11.8 A female employee who has been employed by the employer for at least three consecutive months as a full time employee may be absent for a period not exceeding eight (8) weeks for the purpose of adoption placement within the employee's home, said period to be hereinafter called adoption leave. Adoption leave shall be without pay and the employee shall be restored to her previous or similar position with the same status, pay, and seniority as of the date of her leave. Additional leave may be granted upon approval of the Town Administrator if, in the opinion of the Town Administrator, such leave would not affect the level and nature of departmental services.



Comer PAB CA

ARTICLE XII-LONGEVITY PAY

12.0 All employees shall receive longevity compensation paid within one (1) month of the employees anniversary date, in accordance with the following schedule:

After five (5) years of continuous full time service \$ 75.00

Each year thereafter an additional 20.00 (per year)

After twenty (20) years of service 500.00

Each year thereafter an additional 100.00 (per year)

All longevity pay shall be prorated for regularly scheduled part-time employees. Prorated benefits shall be determined by dividing the employee's regularly scheduled weekly hours, divided by the full time schedule of thirty-seven and one-half hours. Ex. Part time employee that is regularly scheduled fifteen hours- $(15 \div 37.5 = .40)$ X five year benefit of \$75 = \$30.00.

ARTICLE XIII-EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT

13.0

Educational assistance to defray the cost of tuition up to One thousand and sixty-nine (\$1069) dollars per semester will be granted by the Town to employees covered by this Agreement with a minimum of one (1) year's service. This amount shall be pro-rated according to the amount of hours eligible employees are regularly scheduled. Examples: An employee that is regularly scheduled a full time schedule of thirty-seven and one half (37 1/5) hours shall be eligible for the full reimbursement of one thousand and sixty-nine (\$1,069) dollars; an employee regularly scheduled for three (3) seven and one half (7 1/2) hour days (or 22 1/2 hours) shall be eligible for 60% of the full reimbursement. An employee that is regularly scheduled twenty (20) hours shall receive 54% of the full reimbursement or \$570.

ARTICLE XIV-COMPENSATION PLAN

14.0 Employees shall be classified and compensated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Incorporated into this Agreement and attached hereto as Appendix A is a classification and salary ranges. It lists all positions covered by this Agreement by title along with the wages for each position. The salary scales shall be increased by Appendix A:

Effective July 1, 2014 - a two percent (2%) cost of living increase Effective July 1, 2015 - a two percent (2%) cost of living increase Effective July 1, 2016 - a two percent (2%) cost of living increase

14.1 Library employee classifications will be as follows (see Appendix A):

Cmw Rb

Associate Librarian (Grade 6) - Bachelor's Degree; twelve credits or more of graduate course work in library and information science from an ALA accredited program or 3 -5 years of public library experience. Completion of introductory reference and cataloguing courses preferred.

Librarian (Grade 7) - Master of Science degree in Library Science from an ALA accredited program.

Department Head Librarian (Grade 8) - Master of Science degree in Library Science from an ALA accredited program. Minimum of three years professional experience working in a library or related field.

Assistant Director (Grade 9 - Master of Science degree in Library Science from an ALA accredited program. Minimum of three years working as a department head within a library.

- General job descriptions related to these classifications appear in Appendix A. 14.2
- Step-rate increases, not to exceed the maximum rate, may be granted annually to all employees on the anniversary date of hire who otherwise meet all the criteria established and have evidenced a satisfactory performance record. Step increases shall be limited to one (1) step and be granted on the anniversary of hire or promotion whichever is the more recent. Progression through the rate ranges are neither mandatory nor automatic, but are on the basis of merit and ability as recommended by the appropriate Department Head and approved by the Town Administrator. Personal leave of absence in excess of one (1) month shall extend the date of a step-rate increase commensurately with the term of said leave.
- When an employee is transferred to a classification in a higher rate compensation grade he/she shall not move for less than a full step increase.
- 14.5 In the event an employee is demoted to a lower grade, he/she will receive the maximum rate of the lower grade or his/her own rate at the time of demotion whichever is less.
- When an employee is laterally transferred to a classification in the same or equal compensation grade, said employee shall enter at the same step-rate as that paid for the old classification and will be considered for a step-rate increase on the Anniversary Date of the original classification in that grade.
- Any Town employee denied a step-rate increase under the foregoing provisions has the right of grievance under the grievance procedure of Article Y, Sections 5.0, 5.1, and 5.2.
- Effective July 1, 1983, all employees in the Association will have annual evaluations on 14.8 their performance. The employee shall be evaluated by his/her supervisor and shall have the right to respond to said evaluation.
- Employees assigned to perform the duties of a classification in a higher rate for other than casual coverage (i.e., extended illness, vacation and so forth for a period in excess of ten

Comur RB

(I0) working days, shall on the eleventh (11) day and thereafter be paid at the Step I rate of the job being covered or at the first Step rate of job being covered which will ensure the employee a rate higher than his/her regular rate.

ARTICLE XV- WORK STOPPAGES

- 15.0 Pursuant to Chapter ISOE of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the Association and the employees agree not to engage, induce, or encourage any strike, work stoppage, slowdown or withholding of services by employees, including extra work hours as normally required, which are normally provided to the Town.
- 15.1 Should any o its members engage in any of the prohibited practices set forth above, the Association shall immediately, in writing order such members to return to work and immediately cease such practices. The Town shall receive a copy of this written notice.
- 15.2 The Association shall not question the right of the Town to discipline or discharge employees for engaging in, participating in or encouraging such practices and shall agree that such discipline and discharge shall not be considered a violation of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVI-MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 16.0 <u>Bulletin Board</u>- The Town shall provide space for a bulletin board of reasonable size in the Library to be used for Association notices concerning Association business and activities. All such notices shall be approved for posting by the Department Head and by the Town Administrator at Town Hall.
- 16.1 <u>Travel Allowance</u>- Employees required by their Department Heads to use their private vehicles on Town business on a regular basis shall be reimbursed in accordance with the rate established for other Town departments by the Board of Selectmen but shall not be less than the current rate allowed by the Internal Revenue Service, per mile, and reimbursement of up to \$20 per meeting or workshop will be give for public transportation and/or parking fees.
- 16.2 <u>Safety Clause</u> The Town will make every reasonable effort to provide safe and healthful work areas. Employees covered by this Agreement are encouraged to bring to the attention of their immediate supervisor any hazardous or unhealthy condition.
- 16.3 <u>Insurance</u>- The Union hereby recognizes and agrees that the Town of Marshfield shall be under no obligation with the Union with respect to any changes which may be made from year-to-year by any insurance carrier or carriers in any plan, program, or contract(s) of insurance provided to members of the bargaining unit by the Town of Marshfield with respect to the eligibility for, or payment of benefits there under, or co-payments or any other fees or charges required to be paid by members of the bargaining unit as a condition or receipt of any benefits provided pursuant to any such plans, programs or contract(s), no matter however denominated or

Cmw BB described, including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any changes in payments or co-payments associated with office visits, physicals, emergency room care or prescription drugs.

ARTICLE XVII-ANTIDISCRIMINATION

17.0 The parties to this Agreement agree that they shall not knowingly discriminate against an employee because of race, creed, color, sex, age or national origin as provided by law in the execution and administration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVIII-DURATION OF AGREEMENT

- 18.0 Either, the Town or the Association may reopen this Agreement by written notice, forwarded by registered mail to the other, not more than one hundred and eighty (ISO) days and not less than one hundred and fifty (!50) days prior to June 30, 2013, or prior to June 30th of any subsequent year.
- 18.1 If settlement is not reached by June 30, 2013, or June 30th of any subsequent year, this Agreement shall continue in force and effect until midnight of the tenth (10th) day following written notice given by either the Town or the Association of its intention to terminate this Agreement.

Come

18.2 — Neither the Town nor the Association shall submit proposals concerning any change, or attempt to negotiate any change, in the sick leave buy back benefit described in this Agreement prior to the commencement of negotiations for the successor Agreement to that Agreement which shall be effective July 1, 1990; that is, so that no proposed changes in the sick leave buy back benefit may be effective until, at least, after June 30, 1988. The parties further agree that this understanding shall be an agreed upon ground rule in the negotiations for successor Agreement to that which shall be effective July I, 1988.



VLPSA

Harry W. Kelly

Januar Breen

Chrisine McDoods

BOARD OE SELECTMEN

Hum Kugwell

S cmw



APPENDIX B

Alcohol and Illegal Narcotic Prohibitions:

Employees may not report for duty, or stay on duty, while under the influence of any illegal narcotic or alcohol. Illegal narcotics shall be defined as cocaine, marijuana, hashish, heroin, or any derivative substance of those narcotics. Hallucinogens, such as P.C.P., L.S.D., or related substances shall also be included in this definition.

Employees may not report for duty, or stay on duty, if they have tested positive for an illegal narcotic or are found to be under the influence of alcohol.

Employees may be required to report the use of any drugs prescribed by a physician prior to testing.

Annual Testing- Employees will be notified of annual testing through the use of hair testing. Sample collection and testing will be conducted by certified laboratory professions. Refusal to submit a sample will constitute a positive test for the purpose of this policy. Any employee testing positive under the annual testing portion of the policy shall have the right to request a retest using urine analysis.

Probable Cause- If your employer believes that your behavior or appearance may indicate drug use. Observations by the employer must be made just before, during, or just after work hours. Appearance, speech, behavior, and body odor are factors in determining probably cause, as well as indications of the chronic and withdrawal affects of illegal narcotics. The supervisor must directly observe the behavior in question, and may not rely solely on third party reports of an employee being under the influence of illegal narcotics or alcohol. Observations for probable cause will be made by one or more trained supervisors.

The supervisor who determines that there is probable cause must have that observation verified by another supervisor. A written, signed report must be completed by the supervisor who determines probable cause, and the second opinion must be recorded.

<u>First Positive</u>-30-day suspension without pay, unless the employee has accrued vacation leave, personal leave, or sick leave, in which case such suspension shall be with pay to the extent of total accrued time; such leave will be charged to the accrued time in the same order listed herein. The suspension with pay shall be contingent on the employee completing the required treatment program. Return to duty after successful completion of program as identified by SAP and MRO.

Second Positive -discharge

14 60 35

Ventress Library Professional Staff Association Salary Schedule

Effective July 1, 2014

GRADE	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4			
6	\$39,174	\$40,740	\$42,369	\$44,065			
7	\$44,791	\$46,583	\$48,446	\$50,383			
8	\$50,925	\$52,962	\$55,081	\$57,285			
9	\$57,901	\$60,217	\$62,626	\$65,129			
,	757,701	700,217	902,020	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			
Weekly	•						
GRADE	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4			
6	\$750.46	\$780.46	\$811.67	\$844.16			
7	\$858.07	\$892.39	\$928.09	\$965.20			
8	\$975.58	\$1,014.59	\$1,055.19	\$1,097.42			
9.	\$1,109.22	\$1,153.59	\$1,199.73	\$1,247.68			
Hourly -	37.5						
GRADE	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4			
6 .	\$20.01	\$20.81	\$21.64	\$22.51			
7	\$22,88	\$23.80	\$24.75	\$25.74			
8	\$26.02	\$27.06	\$28.14	\$29.26			
9	\$29.58	\$30.76	\$31.99	\$33.27			
Effective July 1, 2015							
GRADE	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP:	3 <u>STEP 4</u>			
6	\$40,110.76	\$41,714.00	•				
7	\$45,862.17	\$47,696.57		,			
8	\$52,143.03	\$54,227.77					
9	\$59,285.69	\$61,656.99		· ·			
	700,200.00	<i>y</i> 0.2,000,00	40.,	20 400,000.20			
Weekly							
GRADE	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP :	STEP 4			
6	\$765.47	\$796.07	\$827.	90 \$861.04			
7	\$875.23	\$910.24	\$946.	65 \$984.50			
8	\$995.10	\$1,034.88	\$1,076.	29 \$1,119.37			
9	\$1,131.41	\$1,176.66	\$1,223.	72 \$1,272.64			

Hourly - 37.5

GRADE STEP 1 STEP 2 STE

STEP 3 STEP 4 \$20.41 \$21.23 \$22.08 \$22.96 6 7 \$23.34 \$24.27 \$25.24 \$26.25 \$26.54 \$27.60 \$28.70 \$29.85 8 \$31.38 9. \$30.17 \$32.63 \$33.94



Omer Com

Effective July 1, 2016

<u>GRADE</u>	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4			
6	\$40,756.82	\$42,385.88	\$44,080.97	\$45,845.33			
7	\$46,600.87	\$48,464.82	\$50,403.45	\$52,418.94			
8	\$52,982.89	\$55,101.21	\$57,306.12	\$59,599.80			
9	\$60,240.60	\$62,650.09	\$65,155.92	\$67,760.25			
Weekly		•					
GRADE	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4			
6	\$780.78	\$811.99	\$844.46	\$878.26			
7	\$892.74	\$928.44	\$965.58	\$1,004.19			
8	\$1,015.00	\$1,055.58	\$1,097.82	\$1,141.76			
9	\$1,154:03	\$1,200.19	\$1,248.20	\$1,298.09			
Hourly - 37.5							
GRADE	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4			
6	\$20.82	\$21.65	\$22.52	\$23.42			
7	\$23.81	\$24.76	\$25.75	\$26.78			
8	\$27.07	\$28.15	\$29.28	\$30.45			
9	\$30.77	\$32.01	\$33.29	\$34.62			

Coms & Coms

CIRCULATION SUPERVISOR

VLPSA Grade 6

Definition

Professional, administrative, supervisory, and direct service work overseeing the general circulation operations for the town's library including interlibrary loan functions; all other related work, as required.

Supervision

Works under the general direction of the Head of Circulation.

Performs responsible library work including planning and overseeing the administration of the circulation desk; exercises considerable judgment and initiative in professional matters.

Supervises full-time and part-time library assistants, pages and volunteers.

Job Environment

Work is performed under typical office and library conditions; work environment is moderately noisy; required to work regular library hours, which may include evening and weekend hours.

Operates computer, telephone, copier, and all other standard office and library equipment including cash register.

Has frequent contact with the public, town departments, other libraries, and professional organizations. Contacts are mostly in person and also by telephone and require discussing routine information, such as assisting patrons find library materials and answering various questions.

Has access to patron records and other sensitive data which requires discretion and confidentiality to ensure patron privacy.

Errors could result in lower standards of library service and inconvenience to patrons, monetary loss, and damage to buildings or equipment.

Essential Functions

The essential functions or duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the position.

- Manages the operations and personnel of the circulation function; supervises, trains and instructs staff and volunteers working on circulation department tasks.
- Performs all work related to the adult circulation desk; opens and closes desk; checks materials in and out; performs and oversees the patron notification process with regard to reserves and overdue records; resolves a variety of problems related to equipment, patrons, etc.; registers patrons; performs data entry to enter and correct records. Keeps circulation desk supplied with materials and informs supervisor when supplies are needed. Processes and prepares reports, on a regular basis, including Old Colony Library Network generated reports. Updates/marks dates for museum passes in Tixkeeper and keeps a record/ is aware of pass expiration dates. Shelves books and materials when



necessary.

- Assists staff with computerized circulation procedures; provides staff with information on new policies and procedures and materials of interest.
- Assists patrons to find desired materials. Answers questions regarding the availability of library materials and programs offered by the library. Provides reader advisory assistance and patron assistance in the use of the on-line catalog system and book and subject area location.
- Assists patrons with public computers and printer/photocopy machine.
- Answers questions regarding application for library cards. Assists patrons in completing applications.
- Responsible for all aspects of the reserve and interlibrary loan process, including determining the patron's needs, locating and ordering the material at other libraries. Answers patron questions regarding interlibrary loan and reserve materials.
- Recommends ideas and helps to develop specific procedures to improve efficiency and effectiveness of the circulation operations.
- Responsible for coordinating the library's system processing for circulation functions with Old Colony Library Network.
- In the event the Head of Circulation is not available may represent the library at regional meetings, in areas of circulation and interlibrary loan.
- Prepares special exhibits and displays.
- Updates staff Intranet as needed.
- When no professional staff are on duty, responsible for opening, closing, and securing the building, following standard library procedures and taking necessary actions.
- Assists with special projects and performs similar or related work as required, or as situation dictates.

Recommended Minimum Qualifications

Education and Experience

Bachelor's Degree in Library Science or related liberal arts field; one year of professional library experience and experience working with the general public; or an equivalent combination of education and experience.

Knowledge, Ability and Skill

Knowledge. Thorough knowledge of the department's policies, procedures, and operations. Working knowledge of computerized library system.

Ability. Ability to relate well to the public. Ability to organize and to plan workloads and assignments of others and to supervise the work of others. Ability to set priorities and to handle multiple tasks simultaneously. Ability to be flexible and to readily adjust to changing situations and circumstances. Ability to express oneself orally and in writing.

Skill. Skill in all of the above listed tools and equipment. Good organizational skills and attention to details.

Physical Requirements

Moderate physical effort generally required in performing functions under typical library conditions. Frequent standing, talking, and using hands and similar activity related to library work. May be required to lift and carry books weighing up to 60 pounds. Work functions involve close work with books, library materials and computers. Ability to operate a keyboard at efficient



Crus



speed.

This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee, and is subject to change by the employer, as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change.

ome of

Head of Youth Services Grade 8

Position Summary:

Responsible for the development, planning, organizing, directing and evaluating of activities, operations, and expenditures within the Youth Services Department. Responsible for conveying and carrying out the Library's Mission and Vision Statements, Objectives and Customer Service program. Responsible for the supervision and evaluation of Youth Services staff, and programs relating to user services and operations. Responsible for collection development. Related work as required.

Principal Responsibilities:

- 1. Oversees and supervises all activities occurring within service/support department, supervises and evaluates staff during their coverage of the department's public service desk, or during performance of technical tasks.
- 2. Responsible for planning, organizing and delivering all library services to children and young adults, providing Children's Reference and Reader Advisory Service, and cooperates with Adult Reference Department in service delivery. Responsible for juvenile Reader Services including the Summer Reading program. Responsible for timely and accurate response to Adult and Youth Reference requests.
- 3. Directly responsible for all aspects and implementation of juvenile programming including: selection and design, performer contact and negotiation, contractual and expense submittal, publicity generation and program hosting for monthly offerings and school vacation weeks. May develop, schedule, promote and implement programs for parents and childhood professionals.
- 4. Oversees planning, development, promotion and presentation of preschool story time offerings, which may include infants and toddlers and their caregivers, traditional story times for 3-5 year-olds, drop-in story times for all preschool ages, and evening pajama story times for families of preschoolers.
- 5. Develops, schedules, promotes and implements weekly programs and activities throughout the summer (Summer Reading Program). These activities may include hired performers; staff-run crafts programs, evening story times and weekly reading prizes.
- 6. Schedules and coordinates regular meetings of the Westford School and Public Library Collaborative, a group comprised of the Westford school library teachers, the Youth Services Librarians of the J.V. Fletcher Library and occasional administrators from both venues.
- 7. Creates a visual and virtual juvenile library environment that is attractive, relates to thematic programs, supports curricula, and facilitates use by specialized user group.

Como

- 8. Responsible for developing, implementing, administering and reviewing policies and procedures pertinent to youth services. Under the guidance of the Administration and Trustees, develops annual goals and objectives for the department. Prepares, monitors and updates departmental procedures and reports annually to the Administration on fulfillment of departmental objectives.
 - 9. Assists in selection of all personnel assigned to youth services department. Trains, supervises, and evaluates all personnel within department. Approves leaves, anticipated absences, meetings and conference requests for departmental personnel. Responsible for the instruction of staff in new departmental procedures, programs or promotional campaigns, and new automated procedures.
 - 10. Assigns duties, and directs and oversees any non-paid personnel in their volunteer tasks within said department.
 - 11. Manages the selection, classification assignment, inventory, weeding and collection development of all print and non-print resources within department, which may include books, standing orders, CD's, periodicals, learning aids, toys and puzzles, maps and globes, Parent and Professional Collections and specialized reader services collections. Responsible for the instruction of staff in the use of newly-acquired materials and resources.
 - 12. Administers and coordinates publicity and promotional campaigns to promote Reader Services, library programs or events, working in conjunction with other staff and keeping staff informed of same. Submits press and news releases to local media, publicizing collections, programs and library events. Contributes regularly to the monthly library newsletter. Updates Web site to reflect library publicity and promotional campaigns.
 - 13. In conjunction with school library teachers, creates and promotes juvenile Reader Services, summer reading lists and the Summer Reading Program through the schools.
 - 14. Develops cooperative programs with the public schools, the branch and other community organizations to promote juvenile or adult Reader Services and user outreach programs.
 - 15. Provides initial service response to concerns and complaints. Interprets for the public the Library Materials Selection Policy, departmental policies, and library policies and procedures; enforces library regulations. Refers patrons to other departments, individuals or service agencies as appropriate.
 - 16. Responsible for a continued knowledge of current professional literature relating to departmental development, technological advances in information storage and retrieval, materials selection, automated procedures, personnel and professional issues.
 - 17. Utilizes automated system, new technologies, electronic equipment and online resources in the performance of duties and trains other library personnel and patrons in automated procedures. Provides formal and informal Internet





and technology training sessions.

- 18. Attends Staff Meetings and Department Head meetings. Regularly attends meetings and workshops pertinent to departmental development; participates in activities and task forces related to the OCLN network.
- 19. Is responsible for scheduled routine evening and weekend coverage of youth services desk.
- 20. Routinely functions as daily, evening or weekend Building Supervisor, having first-response responsibility for the staff, facility and public.
- 21. Based on need, is required to work flexible hours and function as Building Supervisor.
- 22. Delegates and assigns duties within the department as required.

Required Experience, Skills, Knowledge and Abilities:

Professional education in Child Development. Juvenile Literature, Programming and Public Relations. Enthusiasm, stamina and rapport with children. Proficiency in the use of automated systems for the collection, storage and/or retrieval of information systems and in the use of electronic library information resources, including database searching and the Internet. Ability to set priorities and work with frequent interruptions. Ability to train staff and public. Strong interpersonal skills.

Education, Training, Special Licensure/Certification Requirements:

A Master's Degree in Library Science with accreditation from the American Library Association and Massachusetts Board of Library Commissioners' certification, as well as three to five years experience in public library service with relevant course work or concentration in departmental area.

Contacts (boards & committees, vendors, general public, etc.):

Interacts with vendors, contractors, paid performers. Extensive interaction with School Department, Boards and Committees, as well as Town Departmental personnel. Represents Library organization at consortium meetings and on network, regional and state committees. Represents Library organization via professional affiliations and association memberships. Represents Library organization as juvenile or adult program presenter and/or preparer.

Supervisory Responsibility (Include Positions Supervised):

Works under the direction of the Library Director or his/her designee but works with considerable independence in setting own daily work plan. Unusual situations are referred to Library Director. Work involves the direct supervision of full and halftime equivalents, and volunteers within departmental service area. Routinely functions as daily, evening or weekend Building Supervisor, having first-response responsibility for the staff, facility and public. Work involves varied and routine duties requiring the exercise of significant independent judgment and initiative but within established procedures. Has access to department related confidential information involving personnel and confidential patron information protected under



MGL Ch. 78

Primary Physical Requirements:

Ability to operate and view a computer screen for extended periods of time. Depth, color, peripheral, and distance vision routinely required. Regular lifting up 20-30 pounds. Manual use of calculator, telephone, typewriter, copying and facsimile machines, postage meter (micro-film reader/printer). Ability to hear, talk, walk, sit, bend, reach, grasp. Occasional need to climb, balance, stoop, kneel or crouch. Often required to push or pull book trucks weighing up to 150 pounds. May be required to stand for long periods of time.

NX Eg

CMW RB

Assistant Director/Head of Adult Services Grade 9

Summary:

The Assistant Director/Head of Adult Services Librarian is a professional supervisory position, with limited supervision from the Director. The position involves assisting the Director with planning, implementing, and managing library services in accordance with established principles and policies of library operation, local policies and procedures, and pertinent local, statewide, and national laws, regulations, and practices. In consultation with the Director, the Assistant Director is particularly responsible for overseeing and providing reference services, technology training, and adult programming. S/he also serves as Acting Director in the Director's absence.

Level of Responsibility:

The Assistant Director serves under the supervision of the Director and performs duties independently in line with established policies. The position requires the ability to exercise judgment, to interpret policies, to make decisions, and to maintain contact with the public, the Library Board of Trustees, and public officials in consultation with the Director and/or in the Director's absence.

Major Duties:

1. Staff/volunteers:

- A: Supervises and assists full- and part-time employees and volunteers, interpreting policies, establishing and implementing procedures, assigning duties, and monitoring performance.
- B. Trains new employees in library policies, proper procedures, and monitors their progress.
- C. Prepares staff schedule ensuring adequate coverage of the Reference Department.
- D. Assists the Director with recruitment, evaluation, selection, and hiring of new employees.

2. Computers, Equipment:

- A. Organizes and delivers basic computer instruction classes for the public. Develops curriculum and produces publicity.
- B. Trains staff and assists public in the proper handling, care, and use of the computers, programs, and equipment.
- C. Implements computer applications to improve library efficiency.
- D. In consultation with the Director, and with input from the staff, makes



recommendations for the consideration of the Board of Trustees for the purchase and use of computer equipment and resources, along with suggestions for appropriate policies and procedures.

3. Programs, Planning:

- A. Plans and implements programs and services, assessing community needs and desires in consultation with the Director.
- B. Assists the Director and Board of Trustees in long-range planning and community relations.
- C. Writes press releases and reports as necessary.

4. Reference, Public Service:

- A. In consultation with the Director, and with input from the staff, makes recommendations for the consideration of the Board of Trustees for appropriate policies and procedures.
- B. Establishes and implements training procedures for new employees.
- C. Researches and provides authoritative answers to reference questions, maintaining confidentiality of patrons' requests. Supervises use of library equipment and computers by patrons.

5. Library Materials:

A. Selects and orders purchase of Reference and Non-Fiction library materials and services when appropriate.

6. Other:

- A. Confers with Director regarding efficient operation of the library. Informs the Director about personnel performance and patron services. Makes suggestions for improving work and building conditions and public service.
- B. Performs related work as required.

Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:

- 1. Considerable knowledge of current library theory, policy, procedures, methods, practices, and materials.
- 2. Knowledge and competence in using library reference materials and media.
- 3. Knowledge and competence in current library cataloging and circulation procedures.
- 4. Considerable knowledge of or willingness to learn about up-to-date computer equipment, maintenance and repair techniques, operating systems, programs,



Cmus RB

- and networks. Ability to create and deliver instructional classes for basic computer software programs and database searching.
- Some mechanical ability and/or willingness to learn techniques for cleaning, maintaining, and operating audiovisual and other electronic equipment and computers.
- 6. Ability to accomplish or to arrange for the accomplishment of physical tasks involving lifting and bending. Ability to stand for long periods of time.
- 7. Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with library patrons and employees, and various outside entities, such as news media, council on aging, town officials.
- 8. Good verbal and writing skills, to ensure effective communication with the public and the staff:
- 9. Ability to assure staff responsibility for maintaining confidentiality of patron records and requests.
- 10. Good decision-making and leadership skills and the ability to think and respond quickly.
- 11. A temperament that is flexible, courteous, and tactful, capable of performing a variety of duties with good judgment and initiative, and capable of dealing appropriately with a wide spectrum of people in an atmosphere of sometimes noisy activity.

Minimum Requirements:

- 1. Master's degree in library studies required.
- 2. Supervisory experience.
- 3. Three to five year's public library experience.





Head of Circulation Services

Grade 8

Position Summary:

Responsible for the development, planning, organizing, directing and evaluating of activities and operations of the Circulation Department. Responsible for conveying and carrying out the Library's Mission and Vision Statements with regards to Customer Service. Responsible for the supervision and evaluation of circulation staff, and activities relating to user services and operations. Responsible for expeditious circulation of all library materials to and from the public at all public workstations. Responsible for a portion of collection development and budget allocation within the overall Library materials budget. Related work as required.

Principal Responsibilities:

- 1. Oversees and supervises all activities occurring within Circulation Department, supervises and evaluates staff during their coverage of the public service desk and related tasks. May be directly responsible for a portion of the Library's materials budget and its judicious expenditure within certain collection development areas.
- 2. Directly responsible for courteous and timely movement of materials to and from the public and monitoring of all circulation transactions, reserves, registrations, requests and records and the effective functioning of all aspects of automated circulation within a networked and regional environment.
- 3. As Head of Circulation, is responsible for initial handling of patron concerns or complaints at the Main circulation desk.
- 4. Oversees all aspects of the Museum Passes. Administers the automated Museum Pass Booking software and monitors museum pass expiration and renewals. Informs the Friends of the Library in a timely manner of upcoming Museum Pass expirations.
- 5. Maintains the "Circulation Handbook" and interprets new software releases to the staff, instructing them in same.
- 6. Monitors and contributes to the development of the Young Adult blog portion of the Library Web site.
- 7. Insures expeditious flow and shelving of all returned materials.
- 8. Responsible for reviewing all Circulation employees. Under the guidance of the Library Director, develops annual goals and objectives for Circulation personnel. Prepares, monitors and updates Circulation procedures as needed.
- 9. Assists in selection of all personnel assigned to Circulation department. Trains, supervises, and evaluates all personnel within department. Approves leaves, anticipated absences, meetings and conference requests for department personnel. Responsible for the instruction of staff in new department procedures, programs or promotional campaigns, and new automated procedures.
- 10. Manages the selection, classification assignment, inventory, weeding and collection development of the Science Fiction and Young Adult Collections. Responsible for the instruction of staff in the use of acquired materials, new programs or promotional campaigns, and new automated procedures.

5, M. (CC) 35.

Cmw RB

- 11. Administers and coordinates publicity and promotional campaigns to promote Reader Services, Young Adult programs or events, working in conjunction with other staff and keeping staff informed of same. Contributes irregularly to the monthly library by-line "Ventress Voices."
 - 12. Performs research, conducts studies and maintains statistics relating to department effectiveness, costs, usage and growth.
 - 13.Provides information and assistance to patrons. Provides initial service response to concerns and complaints. Interprets for the public the Library Materials Selection Policy, Circulation policies, and library policies and procedures; enforces library regulations. Refers patrons to other departments, individuals or staff as appropriate.
 - 14. Responsible for a continued knowledge of current professional literature relating to departmental development, technological advances in information storage and retrieval, materials selection, automated procedures, personnel and professional issues.
 - 15. Utilizes automated system, new technologies, electronic equipment and online resources in the performance of duties and trains other library personnel and patrons in automated procedures.
 - 16. Attends Staff Meetings and Department Head meetings. Regularly attends meetings and workshops pertinent to Circulation; develops and conducts staff meetings for own department; participates in activities and task forces related to the automated network.
 - 17.Is responsible for scheduled routine evening and weekend coverage of a library public service desk, providing as needed, circulation control, juvenile or adult patron and reference assistance.
 - 18. Routinely functions as daily, evening or weekend Building Supervisor, having first-response responsibility for the staff, facility and public.
 - 19. Based on need, is required to work flexible hours and function as Building Supervisor.
 - 20. Delegates and assigns duties within department as required.

Required Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:

- 1. Ability to use and manage the librarys' automated circulation system to provide efficient and effective service to patrons.
- 2. Knowledge of the philosophy and objectives of public library management.
- 3. Ability to provide outstanding customer service in person, on the telephone, and via e-mail and other forms of electronic communication.
- 4. Skills in problem solving and decision-making.
- 5. Computer skills, including thorough knowledge of word processing and spreadsheets.
- 6. Demonstrated ability in the supervision of staff.
- 7. Ability to communicate effectively in oral and written English.
- 8. Ability to develop and implement long- and short-range plans.
- 9. Ability to organize and analyze data with accuracy.
- 10. Ability to analyze staffing/training needs, plan and coordinate workflow activities.
- 11. Ability to initiate projects, manage teams, and motivate staff.
- 12. Ability to effectively multitask while maintaining a positive attitude.



cmar RB



.13.Ability to deal calmly and effectively with a wide range of individuals, in some instances under stressful or emergency conditions.

14. Must maintain confidentiality of sensitive information and demonstrate a commitment to engage independently in continuing professional development

15. Must perform all aspects of job responsibilities with honesty and integrity

Education, Training, Special Licensure/Certification Requirements:

A Master's Degree or Professional Certification in Library Science with accreditation from the American Library Association and Massachusetts Board of Library Commissioners' certification, as well as three to five years experience in public library service with relevant course work or concentration in department area. Knowledge of computer operating systems, LAN systems, hardware and peripheral components. Any equivalent combination of education and experience.

Represents Library organization at consortium meetings and on network, regional and state committees.

Supervisory Responsibility (Include Positions Supervised):

Works under the direction of the Library Director or his/her designee but works with considerable independence in setting own daily work plan. Unusual situations are referred to Library Director. Work involves the direct supervision of full and part-time employees, within department service areas. Routinely functions as daily, evening or weekend Building Supervisor, having first-response responsibility for the staff, facility and public. Work involves varied and routine duties requiring the exercise of significant independent judgment and initiative but within established procedures. Has access to department related confidential information involving personnel and confidential patron information protected under MGL Ch. 78. Errors could result confusion, administrative problems, technological problems and adverse public relations.

Primary Physical Requirements:

Ability to operate and view a computer screen for extended periods of time. Depth, color, peripheral, and distance vision routinely required. Regular lifting up 20-30 pounds. Manual use of, telephone, copying and facsimile machines, and micro-film reader/printer. Ability to hear, talk, walk, sit, bend, reach, grasp. Occasional need to climb, balance, stoop, kneel or crouch. Often required to push or pull book trucks weighing up to 150 pounds. May be required to stand for long periods of time.

Cmar

Information Services Librarian

Grade 7

Supervision

Employee works under the general direction of the Assistant Director/Head of Reference. Employee plans and arranges own work in accordance with standard procedures and previous training referring unusual or difficult situations to the supervisor.

Instructions for new assignments or special projects usually consist of statements of desired objectives, deadline or priorities. Technical and policy problems or changes in procedures are discussed with the supervisor, but ordinarily the employee plans and performs work independently.

Work is reviewed for technical adequacy, appropriateness of actions or decisions, and conformance with policy or other requirements.

Essential Duties

Assist the Head of Reference with regularly scheduled coverage of the Reference Desk. Performs a wide variety of reference services; computer troubleshooting; assists with training for staff and public on the use of computers, tablets, eReaders, the Internet, electronic databases, and other technology resources. Provides readers' advisory and research assistance to library users in direct consultation, by phone, email or other emerging technologies.

Effectively researches questions of varying complexity for patrons, using library materials, electronic and Internet sources, and community resources. Adjusts responses appropriately based on age and educational background of library users; confers with other professionals on questions that are complex or specialized in nature. Maintains a welcoming environment at the library's Reference Desk. Models good customer service practices at all times. Provides referrals to other libraries, sources, agencies, etc. when necessary.

Assists patrons in learning about library resources and services for independent use and research by providing informal instruction in the use of such resources (e.g. OCLN catalog, Virtual Catalog, Internet, electronic databases), and developing and distributing informative handouts on library materials, services, reading lists, web resources, etc. In consultation with the Head of Reference, may be asked to develop and conduct training sessions for the public on how to use computers, the Internet, and electronic databases, both within the library building and out in the community.

Responsible for basic troubleshooting of public computers and other electronic equipment used by the public while assigned to the Reference Desk and when other staff is not available. Troubleshoot computer software (e.g. print management, reservations software) and computer connections (e.g. cable, wireless) as needed to ensure satisfactory public access. Investigates and reports on new technologies and software for use by patrons and staff, including potential impact on changing patron behaviors.





Perform other similar duties as required or as requested by supervisor.

We are looking for someone who is enthusiastic about technology and has an interest in its practical application in a library setting. This person needs to be outgoing, innovative, and take a proactive role in providing patrons with library services provide assistance to patrons with use of computers and the Internet.

Work Environment

Work is performed under typical library and office conditions; the workload is subject to seasonal fluctuations which require advance planning; regular library schedule requires evening and weekend work.

The employee operates standard library equipment, computers, projectors, photocopier, and microfilm readers.

The employee has regular contact with library patrons and staff, vendors, other town employees and outside organizations; contact is typically in person or by telephone.

Minimum Qualifications

Education and Experience:

Masters in Library Science from an accredited institution; preferred two years of public library experience; or, a combination of education and experience that enables performance of all aspects of the position.

Knowledge, Ability and Skill:

Requires demonstrated proficiency with computers including networked computers, Windows, word processing, spreadsheets, and email; automated catalogs, electronic databases, the Internet, and Web 2.0 technologies; and previous experience with an automated library circulation system. Requires knowledge of reference and information sources in all formats including search and evaluation techniques. Must possess effective communication and training techniques, demonstrate flexibility in a dynamic environment, and be at ease with interruptions.

Must maintain confidentiality of sensitive information and demonstrate a commitment to engage independently in continuing professional development. Must perform all aspects of job responsibilities with honesty and integrity.

Ability to deal in an effective and courteous manner with members of the general public on a daily basis, and enjoy working with and possess the skills to interact with both children and adults in a professional manner. Ability to establish and maintain effective cooperative and positive working relationships with library staff and work cooperatively with other divisions, departments and elected or appointed officials. Ability to plan, analyze, carry out projects, consult and offer advice; requires effective communication skills. Ability to work accurately with close attention to detail in reading, writing, spelling and performing basic math functions.

CMW BB

Physical Requirements:

Minimal physical effort required under typical office conditions include regular sitting, talking, walking and mental concentration for extended periods; intermittent moderate effort required for tasks such as moving files, books or other library printed materials. Position requires the ability to operate a keyboard and view computer screens and the ability to adjust focus; hearing ability requirements include ability to interact with the public, elected or appointed officials and outside organizations. Must be able to stoop, kneel, bend, reach forward and above the head; to receive books from patrons; lift books and other materials; bend and extend reach for such tasks as shelving books or emptying book drop.

CMW RB